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La Prairie Grange Hall No. 79 is a two-storied, three-bayed vernacular building, sided 
with white clapboard and covered with a gable roof. Dimensions are 32* x 50 f x 22* to 
the plate and rafters. The Hall faces east on a gentle prominence and commands a 
pleasant view of the surrounding countryside. Its plot occupies 1650 square feet* The 
original seven foot fence and the horse sheds have long been gone.

There are few embellishments to the exterior. A white moulded frieze board parallels 
the eaves. There is simple green wood trim at the corners and windows, which are tall 
4-over-4 pane double hung sash, with the original glass. The window frames have a 
cap at the top of the sides and across the lintel; a vernacular reminder of the con­ 
temporary popular Italianate stilted arch. Original green blinds were removed from the 
windows in 1884. """ ~ ~ r >

The double-doored entrance is at the center of the front; the window above it is blind, 
covered with a pair of white closed shutters. The doors enter directly into the first 
story hall, an open room which takes up the full width of the building (32 feet) and 
extends 34 feet back to the kitchen.' Central wooden posts support a wooden beam 
from the front to the back. The present hardwood floors were installed in 1899, "laid 
by the boys" (La Prairie Grange records, RCHS) . Walls on both stories are covered 
with their original narrow vertical tongue and groove and scored paneling, intersected 
by a chair rail. They are now painted cream yellow. The base below the chair rail is 
painted tan downstairs and green on the second story.

ppHng r-flirm and
Collapsible voting booths are attached to the north wall. The 

room is furnished with tables and used for Junior Grange meetings and along with the 
upstairs, for card-parties .

The second story hall is reached by a back stairway and by an enclosed wooden fire 
escape against the north wall, the latter added in 1931. The hall ceiling is a 
truncated gable. This room is used for Grange meetings, for "old time" parties with 
dances (it has historically boasted a good floor for dancing), and for 4-H plays. 
The stage, a low platform, was built in 1921 and enlarged in 1929. The "play 
curtain," covered traditionally with local advertising, is the second one in use, 
painted as late as the 1950 f s (Carlson interview).

A lean-to addition at the rear of the building, with pent roof, was added in 1931 
with indoor privy-type latrines; these were converted fairly recently into modern 
gas burning toilets. The library bookcases of the 1880 f s were moved downstairs to be 
used as kitchen shelves. The kitchen is not modernized. In all, the building has 
undergone very little alteration since its construction in 1874 and has been well 
maintained by the members of the Grange.
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The La Prairie Grange Hall No. 79 is the oldest Grange Hall standing in Wisconsin and 
possibly one of the four oldest Grange Halls still standing in the United States. It 
is a well-preserved example, still in active use, of one of the earliest existing meeting 
places of the Patrons of Husbandry, commonly called the Grange, the dean of politically 
active agricultural organizations in the United States.

It is also a unique combination of Grange Hall/Town Hall, constructed with cooperation 
from the town and used by both the Grange and the Town for over 100 years. Since its 
construction it has been the center of political life in this rural township, a place 
for Town Meetings, a site for voting, and a spot to meet with County Supervisors, other 
elected officials, or candidates to discuss current government problems. It is also the 
oldest Rock County structure built for use as a Town Hall and still serving that purpose.

The National Grange was founded in December, 1867, by Oliver Hudson Kelley of Minnesota, 
at a meeting held in Washington, D. C. It was created for the mutual protection and 
advancement of American farmers in reaction to the railroad monopolies. Its Declaration 
of Purposes of February, 1874, advocated productive farming; greater marketing efficiency 
and elimination of surplus middlemen; reduced transportation costs and lower interest 
rates; and further educational opportunities in agriculture and domestic science. Women 
were specifically admitted to membership and office.

The La Prairie Grange No. 79 was organized February 27, 1873 as a subordinate Grange or 
local lodge of the Order of Patrons of Husbandry. The Town of La Prairie provided the 
land and $700.00 towards building expenses. The Grange agreed to provide the building. 
The Supervisors of the Town of La Prairie were "to have and own a room... on the first 
floor and to front on the road." The Grange was "to have the use of the room for a 
dining room, when not in use by the Town." (Articles of Agreement, 1874.) In 1960 the 
township deeded its share of the building to the Grange, reserving the right to use it 
for such functions as town meetings or voting.

The Grange was a cohesive social force in the rural La Prairie area, and its hall provided 
a place for social activities such as card parties and dancing, Sunday church services, and 
Grange meetings. Agricultural questions were foremost on the agenda of meetings, including 
debates on various ways to improve dairying and farming. The La Prairie Grange was also a 
local political force, and members still feel that belonging to the Grange gives them a 
stronger voice nationally. In general, the grange supported agricultural education. In 
1890 the local Grange advocated, with the National Grange, Rural Free Delivery. They also 
supported parcel post and rural electrification, the latter of which reached the local 
grange in the 1930's.

The La Prairie Grange currently has about 60 active adult members, and there is a Junior 
Grange (ages 5-15) as well. Some of the children are fifth generation members.

In 1973 the La Prairie Grange Hall was designated Wisconsin Registered Landmark No. 104.
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